
26 January 2022 

ADDENDUM NO: TWO 

TO ALL BIDDERS: 

REFERENCE:    RFP No:  2022-RFP-4020433  
Commodity: Print and Mailing Services 
RFP Closing On: February 4, 2022 

1. Please note the questions/clarifications made to this solicitation(attached): 
Section V.J. of the RFP states FTP. Please note this is changed to SFTP

J.Disaster Recovery Procedures: 
Contractor must have a demonstrated disaster recovery program (hardware and software) addressed in their 
proposal that ensures prompt and complete recovery. The detail of this plan should include off-site storage of 
information, data recovery procedures, timing in which backup will occur, equipment failure process, alternate 
SFTP sites, etc. The offeror shall detail their solution to ensure no significant interruption of service and any cost(s) 
that will be charged to the Department of Finance and Budget for the availability of these services. Disaster recovery 
procedures require the same security levels as noted above (Section "I", Security). 

2. All other terms and conditions of the solicitation remain unchanged.  Sealed proposals must be
received in accordance with the solicitation requirements by 3:00 PM  EDT on  February 4,
2022.  Late proposals will not be considered.

3. A signed acknowledgement of this addendum must be received by this office attached to your
proposal.  Signature on this addendum does not constitute your signature on the original proposal
document.  The original proposal document must be signed also.

 Sincerely, 

   Lisa Thomas 
      Lisa Thomas, VCO
      Buyer  
      Phone:  (434) 296-5854 

Name of Firm Signature/Title 

Date Printed Name 

https://ia.albemarle.org/CountyPictures/County%20Seals/coasealbw374x382.gif


Addendum Two  
January 26, 2022 
Print and Mailing Services 
RE: 2022-RFP-4020433 
 

Q1: What is the reason for going out to bid at this time? 
A1: The contract ended. 
 
Q2: Are there any service related issues with the current vendor? 
A2: The County is always looking for opportunities to identify additional areas to improve 
efficiency in processing mailings and/or lowering costs.  
 

Q3: Is the County looking for something the current vendor does not provide? 
A3: The County is always looking for opportunities to identify additional areas to improve 
efficiency in processing mailings and/or lowering costs.  

 

Q4: With regards to the production schedule, what is the turn around time for smaller projects 
(those under 25,000) and larger projects (those over 25,000) – how many days from approval 
will the vendor have to print and mail all of the components for that particular project? 
A4: The vendor can provide their most capable turnaround time for different job size in a 
narrative statement for evaluation. Refer to question C10 in ATTACHMENT A1 of the RFP. 
 
Q5: With regards to the production schedule, item 14. “Informational brochures and inserts -- 
Approximately 260,000 per year.” – is it possible to obtain a copy of what the inserts look like 
and will we be required to provide pricing for this item? 
A5: See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two. 
 
Q6: Is it possible to obtain a PDF copy of each of the items that the vendor is to produce – PP 
regular tax bills, RE regular tax bills, PP and RE supplemental and  
A6: See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two. 
 
Q7: The RFP states “Relative to your firm’s geographic location, how do you envision providing 
support to the Department of Finance” – is the bid limited to respondents in the immediate 
local area, such as County of Albemarle or State of Virginia? Our firm currently services Counties 
in Virginia from our facilities in Florida and Illinois and just want to make sure there is not local 
vendor preference.  
A7: It is the County’s intent that the RFP permits competition. Refer to Section IV of the RFP. 
Please provide supporting narrative statement in question A2 of the Questionnaire of 
ATTACHMENT A1 of the RFP. 
 
Q8: Is it possible to obtain a PDF copy or scan of each of the #10 and #9 envelopes currently 
being used by the County? 
A8: See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two. 
 



Q9: May we make recommendations for using #9 window envelopes where the remit 
information is printed on the bill or notice instead of imprinting the envelope as this will save 
cost, improve production efficiency and allow for same day disaster recovery? 
A9: The County is always looking for opportunities to identify additional areas to improve 
efficiency in processing mailings and/or lowering costs. Refer to section V K in RFP. 
 
Q10: What time of day are files typically sent in? 
A10: It varies. 
 
Q11: Does the County employ householding or grouping for these projects whereby bills or 
notices going to the same owner at the same address are placed into 9x12 envelopes? 
A11: Yes. If the householding can be sent out using a standard #10 envelope, they should go out 
using the #10 envelope for cost saving. If the total number of pages in householding exceed the 
capacity of a standard #10 envelope, they can go out in the next size up. 
 
Q12: What is the desired implementation timeline for this project or when would the County 
like to “Go Live”? 
A12: Please refer to “Period of Contract” on page 1 of the RFP. 
 
Q13: Who is the current vendor for this project? 
A13: SouthData an OSG company 
 
Q14: What is the current cost that the County is paying for this service? 
A14: Approximately $190,000 
 
Q15: Give the current economic environment, does the County allow for CPI increases at the 
time of renewal? 
A15: Refer to section XI I “Renewal of Contract” in the RFP. 
 
Q16: Does the County require the vendor to archive these documents online in PDF format and 
provide an API for either customer view or CSR viewing and if so, for how long – 12, 24, 36 
months or longer? 
A16: Yes. The vendor can provide their most capable length of time for archiving document in a 
narrative statement in the proposal for evaluation. 

 

Q17: Does the County require sample approval prior to each project mailing? 
A17: Yes 
 
Q18: Is it possible to get the specifications on the coupon book items below. For instance, what 
size are they, how many pages, is there a perforation, what type of binding is used, etc.   

a. 10. Food and Beverage tax coupon books mailed the first week of January. -- 
Approximately 300 per year. 

b. 11. Transient Occupancy tax coupon books mailed the first week of January. -- 
Approximately 230 per year. 

c. Anything you find relevant as these are custom projects. 



A18: The size for item 10 (Food and Beverage Tax Coupons) and item 11 (Transient Occupancy 
Tax Coupons) are both 8.5” X 4”. There are a total of 19 pages with a cover page for address, a 
second page for instruction, and custom peel off address labels. The coupons are for twelve 
calendar months with two extra blank months, printed on one side, perforated ½” from left 
edge. See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two for samples. 
 
Q19: Can you tell us who is the current provider of these services as well as current pricing or 
recent invoices. 
A19: SouthData an OSG company. See Attachment B-Addendum Two for current pricing. 
 
Q20: Also please provide samples of each of the documents to be printed and mailed as well as 
corresponding envelopes.  Please provide color images of both front and back of all samples.  
A20: See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two. 
 
Q21: I would like to request samples of all notices and envelopes that apply to this RFP. If 
additional information is needed, please let me know.  
A21: See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two. 
 
Q22: We would like to request samples or pdf’s for the #10 Food and Beverage tax coupon 
books and the #11 Transient Occupancy tax coupon books. Please provide the size for each and 
if it prints one or two sides. Are any perforations needed? 
A22: The size for item 10 (Food and Beverage Tax Coupons) and item 11 (Transient Occupancy 
Tax Coupons) are both 8.5” X 4”. There are a total of 19 pages with a cover page for address, a 
second page for instruction, and custom peel off address labels. The coupons are for twelve 
calendar months with two extra blank months, printed on one side, perforated ½” from left 
edge. See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two for samples. 
 
Q23: #14 Informational brochures and inserts, please supply sizes, how many colors, one or two 
sided and if folding is needed. 
A:23: Information brochures and inserts are 8.5”X 11” folded in three, with multiple colors 
printed on both sides. See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two for samples. 
 
Q24: #17 No/Incomplete Application Postcards, please supply size and how many sides print. 
A24: Standard postcard, printed on both sides. 
 
Q25: Will you accept proposals that use postage at cost from the USPS if we can use discount 
rates through presorting? If so, are you agreeable to a clause in the contract that accepts 
postage increases from the USPS? 
A25: Please see updated information in the updated pricing sheet in Addendum Two. 
 
Q26: Page 3 of Addendum 1, states: NOTE #1: Refer to section VI K. for renewal maximum for 
all categories to include postage. We are not finding a Section VI. K. in the original RFP 
document. Is this section missing, or does this intend to reference Section V. K? 
A26: Please see updated information in the updated pricing sheet in Addendum Two. 
 
 



Q27: Can the USPS postage estimate be a separate line item from the vendor’s pricing? 
A27: See updated pricing sheet in Addendum Two. 
 
Q28: What percentage or estimated quantity of notices will be electronic billing? 
A28: This data is not available. 
 
Q29: Is the previous/current pricing available? 
A29: See Attachment B-Addendum Two. 
 
Q30: Given the sensitive nature of the financial information being shares, does the County 
require or prefer a vendor that carries Cyber Liability insurance and is also SOC I & II audited and 
certified? 
A30: The County requires a vendor that carries Cyber Liability insurance and is also SOC I & II 
audited and certified. 
 
Q31: Was the pricing sheet posted on the County website? 
A31: It was posted on the County website and eVA, the pricing sheet is just to be referred too.  
 
Q32: Is it possible to obtain a PDF or photos of the coupon books (Items #10 and #11)? 
A32: Yes, we will provide that data. See ATTACHMENT C-Addendum Two 
 
Q33: Are samples of all the documents provided with the addendum?  
A33: Yes, samples will be provided in the addendum. See Attachment B-Addendum Two 
 
Q34: Is a zip file format desired? 
A34: no zip drives will be accepted. 
 
Q35: When we send the information end, can they be combined into more than one email? 
A35:  One email is preferred if possible.  Pricing sheet is public information. 
 
Q36: The Addendum mentions we should check proposal section V. K. for additional information 
about pricing, including for postage.  I’m not seeing this section - should be include this question 
in an email? 
A36: Addendum was posted today.  So, there are 4 questions that are answered.  RFP #6, they 
will only be accepted by PDF.  May have wrong section, the question will be emailed for further 
clarification. See the most updated pricing sheet of Addendum Two. 
 
Q37: I am looking at the new pricing sheet can you explain columns E, F, G, and H please?  I want 
to make sure we understand. 
A37: The new updated pricing sheet in E is the price for postage type 1.  F would be for that type 
of rate for quantity. See the most updated pricing sheet of Addendum Two. 
 
Q38: Is the vendor defining what type 1 / type 2 for example:  Type 1 is what the USPS rates for 
mixed AADC and Type 2 is our estimate for average cost per envelopes after householding.  Are 



we being held to those rates even if there is a USPS rate increase?  Question updated after 
meeting in Teams… 
A38:  Will get back to you on this question. See the most updated pricing sheet in Addendum 
Two. 

 
Q39: Does the County require or prefer a vendor with 4 production facilities located throughout 
the US in a regionally diverse manner for Disaster Recovery purposes?  
A39: Required 
 
Q40: Does the County require or prefer the selected vendor be able to change over to a backup 
facility within 24 hours of an emergency or severe weather event?  
A40: Required 
 
Q41: What CIS platform does the County operate on currently? 
A41:  We are currently doing our best to implement the NIST Cybersecurity framework. I 
suppose this would be our "CIS level."  
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A  
RFP 2022-RFP-4020433/PRINT AND MAILING SERVICES 

VENDOR NAME:_____________________________________________ 
* May use different color ink in some sections  
** Provide a separate sheet for pricing if needed. May provide additional specifications of other existing or new features and offerings  
*** USPS postage increases shall not be passed to the County at any point during the full contract term and/or any renewal term( please refer to the RFP for entire term).  
NOTE #1: Refer to section XI I for renewal maximum for all categories to include postage  
NOTE #2: Price per unit must be an exact number with one number per column (no price changes, no price range or alterations to Attachment A).   
 

Pricing Sheet – Print & Bind (Material, Printing, Folding, Inserting, Packaging), Postage and Other: USPS postage increases shall 
not be passed to the County at any point during the full contract term and/or any renewal, the selected vendor must absorb any 

USPS increase. Vendors please submit your pricing accordingly. 

 

 

A. Description of Notices B. Quantity of 
Notices Per Year 

C. Mail Dates D. Price Per Unit 
(Material, Printing, 
Folding, Inserting, 

and Packaging) 

E. Subtotal of 
Material, Printing, 
Folding, Inserting 

and Packaging     
(B X D) 

F. Price Per 
Unit  

(***Postage) 

G. Subtotal of 
Postage    

(B X F) 

H. Total Price  
(E + G) 

1. Personal Property 
Regular Tax Bills 

165,000 May and October      

2. Real Estate Regular 
Tax Bills 

92,000 May and October      

3. Personal Property 
Supplemental Tax Bills 

12,000 March,  
and September 

     

4. Real Estate 
Supplemental Tax 
Bills 

550 March, September, 
and December 

     

5. Delinquent Property 
Tax Bills (PP, RE) * 

31,000 January and July      

6. Business License 
Invoice (To be 
Developed) 

2500 May      

7. Delinquent Business 
License Tax Bills* (To 
be Developed) 

1,200 July      

8. Business License 
Renewal Reminder 
Notification 

8,000 December      

9. Tangible Personal 
Property Filing 
Reminder Notification 

4,000 April      



10. Food and Beverage Tax 
Coupons 

300 January      

11. Transient 
Occupancy Tax 
coupons 

230 January      

12. Tax Relief Applications 1,400 January      

13. RBO Tenant Letters 2,000 December      

14. Informational brochures 
and inserts 

26,000 Along with regular  
and supplemental bill  

mailings 

     

15. Real Estate 
Reassessment Notices 

46,000 January      

16. Forestry/ Open space/ 
Agricultural Letters 

4,500 June every other year      

17. No/Incomplete 
Application Postcards 

2,000 August      

18. Land Use information 
Letter (To be 
developed) 

8000 May and October      

A.Description B. Frequency Per 
Year (Filled by 

Contractor) 

 

C.Price Per 
Frequency 

D.N/A E. N/A F.N/A G. N/A H.Total Price (Per 
Year)     (B x C) 

19. CASS Certification        

20. NCOA Processing        

21. Set Up, Formatting        

22. Internet Tracking 
System or PDF file 

       

23. Electronic Billing 
Services ** 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
TOTAL  Column H:____________________ 

Pricing Notes: 
• Cost Award based on criteria column H item #’s 1-23 
• See section VII for Evaluation and Award criteria 
• Offerors must complete pricing sheet as posted in RFP/ No deviations 
• NOTE: Quantity on pricing sheet is closely estimated and may go up or down depending on mailing needs. 



Attachment B -Addendum Two
Current Vendor Pricing Sheet
2022-RFP-4020433



Attachment C – Addendum Two 
2022-RFP-4020433 

 

1.Personal Property Regular Tax Bill (Front) 
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2022-RFP-4020433 

 
1.Personal Property Regular Tax Bill (Back) 
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1. Personal Property Information Brochure (Attachment to above) 
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1. Personal Property Information Brochure (Attachment to above) 



Attachment C – Addendum Two 
2022-RFP-4020433 

 
2. Real Estate Regular Tax Bill (Front) 
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2. Real Estate Regular Tax Bill (Back) 
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2. Real Estate Brochure (Attached to above) 



Attachment C – Addendum Two 
2022-RFP-4020433 

 
2. Real Estate Brochure (Attached to above) 
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3. Personal Property Supplemental Tax Bill (Front) 
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3. Personal Property Supplemental Tax Bill (Back) 
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3. Attachment to Personal Property Supplemental Tax Bill 
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4. Real Estate Supplemental Tax Bill (Front) 
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4. Real Estate Supplemental Tax Bill (Back) 
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4. Real Estate Supplemental Tax Bill Attachment 
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5. Delinquent Real Estate Tax Bills (Front) 
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5. Delinquent Real Estate Tax Bills (Back) 
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5a. Delinquent Property Tax Bill (Front) 
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5a. Delinquent Property Tax Bill (Back) 
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6. Business License Invoice (Front) – Printed In-House 
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6. Business License Invoice (Back) – Printed In-House 
 



Attachment C – Addendum Two 
2022-RFP-4020433 

 
 

7. Delinquent Business License Tax Bill (Front) – Printed In-House 



Attachment C – Addendum Two 
2022-RFP-4020433 

 
 

 
7. Delinquent Business License Tax Bill (Back) – Printed In-House 
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8. Business License Renewal Property Filing Reminder Notification 
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9. Tangible Personal Property Filing Reminder Notification – In Production Phase 
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10. Food and Beverage Coupon (Front) 
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10. Food and Beverage Coupon (Back) 
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10. Food and Beverage Coupon (Form) 
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11. Food and Beverage Coupon (Front) 
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11. Food and Beverage Coupon (Back-Instructions) 
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11. Food and Beverage Coupon (Form) 
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12. Tax Relief Application (Cover Letter – Front) 
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12. Tax Relief Application (Cover Letter – Back) 
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12. Tax Relief Application (Front)  
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12. Tax Relief Application (Back)  
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12. Tax Relief Certification – Separate Product than the Tax Relief Application  
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13. RBO Tenant Letter 
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13. RBO Tenant Letter Form (front) 
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13. RBO Tenant Letter Form (back) 
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14.0 Spanish Language Assistance Insert (Front and Back) 
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14.1 Business License Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.1 Business License Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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14.2 Contractor Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.2 Contractor Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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14.3 Farm Business Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.3 Farm Business Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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14.4 Fiduciary Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.4 Fiduciary Business Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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14.5 Homestay Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.5 Homestay Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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14.6 Winery and Craft Spirits Tax Guide (Page 1) 
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14.6 Winery and Craft Spirits Tax Guide (Page 2) 
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15. Real Estate Reassessment Notice (Front) 
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15. Real Estate Reassessment Notice (Back) 
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16.0 Agriculture and Forestry Revalidation Letter 
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16.1 Agriculture Revalidation Letter 
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16.2 Revalidation Form A (Front) 
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16.2 Revalidation Form A (Back) 
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16.3 Revalidation Form B (Front) 
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16.3 Revalidation Form B (Back) 
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16.4 Revalidation Letter for Form C  
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16.4 Revalidation Form  
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17.0 Postcard for Application Not Received 
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17.1 Postcard Reminder Mailing Revalidation  
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17.2 Postcard Reminder Mailing  
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#9 Envelope (Front and Back) 
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#10 Envelope (Front and Back) 




